
 
CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Agenda 
 

March 7, 2023 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

1 of 1 

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM 
    
II. CALL TO ORDER 
    
III. INVOCATION 
    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2023 
  B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February 21, 2023 
    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS 
  A. Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time (Second Reading) 
    
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
  A. Pavement Setback Variance for 115 Towne Center Boulevard (Public 

Hearing, Action) 
  B. Building Height Variance for a Proposed Hotel at 115 Towne Center 

Drive (Public Hearing, Action) 
  C. Conditional Use Request for a Proposed Trailer Parking Yard on 

Jimmy DeLoach Parkway (Public Hearing, Action) 
  D. Site Plan for Savannah Quarters Office on Holmes Court 
  E. Site Plan for Pittman Subaru on Kita Avenue (Clear Lake Reserve) 
  F. Proposal for Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis and Pickleball 

Lighting System from Musco Lighting 
    
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
    
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 
CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting – Minutes 
 

February 21, 2023 at 6:00 PM | Pooler City Hall | 100 US Hwy 80 SW, Pooler, GA 31322 

1 of 5 

 
    
I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM  
  Present: Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 

Tom Hutcherson, Mayor Pro Tem via teleconference 
Shannon Black, Councilmember 
Aaron Higgins, Councilmember 
Stevie Wall, Councilmember 
John Wilcher, Councilmember 
Karen Williams, Councilmember  
Robert Byrd, City Manager   
Craig Call, City Attorney    
Chris Lightle, Finance Officer   
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council    

    
Absent:  

    
II. CALL TO ORDER  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
    
III. INVOCATION  
  Dr. Shirlenia Daniel gave the invocation. 
    
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
  Dr. Shirlenia Daniel led the pledge. 
    
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
  Mayor Rebecca Benton reported that the City of Pooler has been redesignated as 

a Tree City USA for 2023 by the Arbor Day Foundation in honor of the city's 
commitment to effective urban forest management. The Tree City USA program is 
sponsored by the Arbor Day Foundation in partnership with the U.S. Forest 
Service and the National Association of State Foresters. She also announced that 
the 2023 Partner with Pooler to Plant a Tree for Free event will take place on 
Saturday, March 11, 2023 at the Pooler Rec Center from 10:00 a.m. - 2:00 p.m. 
 
Chief Ashley Brown presented awards to the following individuals from the Police 
Department: Corporal Bradley Winn - Supervisor of the Year, Officer Chris 
Muddiman - Officer of the Year, and Officer Ian Kenny, Comeback Officer of the 
Year. 



 

2 of 5 

    
VI. CONSENT AGENDA  
  City Manager Robert Byrd presented the Consent Agenda for consideration. 
  A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2023  
    

 

  B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February 6, 2023  
    

 

  C. City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 2, 2022  
    

 

  D. City Council Planning Retreat Minutes of February 8, 2023  
    

 

  E. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February 8, 2023  
    

 

  F. Alcoholic Beverage License Application for The British Pie Company 
DBA Pie Society at 1215 US Highway 80 East, Suite 100/200  

    
 

  G. Change of Business Address Notification for The British Pie Company 
DBA Pie Society at 1215 Highway 80 East, Suite 100/200  

    
 

  H. Special Event Permit Application for Citizen Pictures from February 
20-27, 2023  

    
 

  I. Special Event Permit Application for Matthew Gunn on June 3, 2023  
    

 

  J. Special Event Permit Application for S2S Facts, Inc. on July 29, 2023  
    

 

  K. Department Reports  
    

 

  1. Public Works  
    

 

  2. Finance  
    

 

  3. Fire Department  
    

 

  4. Police Department  
    

 

  5. Recreation  
    

 

  6. Planning & Zoning  
     

Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to approve the Consent Agenda as 



 

3 of 5 

submitted to include the fee waiver for Item J. Special Event Permit 
Application for S2S Facts, Inc. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Hutcherson 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS  
  

 

  A. Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time (First Reading)  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the proposed ordinance for 

consideration. Councilmember John Wilcher moved to approve the first 
reading of Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Wall 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  B. Proclamation for Georgia State Arbor Day 2023  
    Mayor Rebecca Benton read aloud the Proclamation for Georgia State Arbor 

Day 2023. Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved to accept the proclamation. 
 
Motion to Accept; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Williams 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
VIII. OLD BUSINESS  
  

 

  A. Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway)  
    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the site plan for consideration. Kinjan 

Patel was present to answer questions. Councilmember Aaron Higgins 
moved to approve the Site Plan for Nine Squares (1541 Pooler Parkway) 
with the understanding that the petitioner: 
 
1. Must return for approval of future use of the final building 
2. Must meet with the City Planner regarding additional landscaping needs 
at the rear of the building 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 



 

4 of 5 

MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Williams 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
IX. NEW BUSINESS  
  

 

  A. Conditional Use Request to Operate a Miscellaneous Manufacturing 
Business at 5212 Old Louisville Road (Public Hearing, Action)  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the request for consideration. MANA 
Nutrition's Marc Moore and Chris Whitfield and attorney Harold Yellin were 
present to answer questions. Mayor Rebecca Benton opened and closed the 
public hearing without comment. Councilmember Aaron Higgins, upon 
review of the criteria, moved to approve the Conditional Use Request to 
Operate a Miscellaneous Manufacturing Business at 5212 Old Louisville 
Road. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  B. Conditional Use Request to Operate an HVAC Business at 110 
Pipemakers Circle, Suite 101 (Public Hearing, Action)  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the request for consideration. Sidney 
Puckett of Carolina Chillers was present to answer questions. Mayor Rebecca 
Benton opened and closed the public hearing without comment. 
Councilmember Karen Williams, upon review of the criteria, moved to 
approve the Conditional Use Request to Operate an HVAC Business at 110 
Pipemakers Circle, Suite 101. 
 
Motion to Approve; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Williams 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

  C. Acceptance of Maintenance Bond for Memorial Boulevard East 
Access Road  

    City Manager Robert Byrd presented the bond for consideration. 
Councilmember John Michael Wilcher moved to approve Acceptance of the 
Maintenance Bond for Memorial Boulevard East Access Road in the amount 
of $28,443.00, subject to City Attorney approval. 
 
Motion to Approve with Stipulations; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 



 

5 of 5 

MOVER: Wilcher 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  

    
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
  With no further public business to conduct, Councilmember Aaron Higgins moved 

to enter Executive Session. Council entered Executive Session at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Motion to Enter; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Higgins 
SECONDER: Wilcher 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  
 
Mayor Rebecca C. Benton called the meeting back to order at 6:52 p.m. 

    
XI. ADJOURNMENT  
  Councilmember Stevie Wall moved to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Motion to Adjourn; PASSED (UNANIMOUS) 
MOVER: Wall 
SECONDER: Higgins 
AYES: Black, Higgins, Hutcherson, Wall, Wilcher, Williams 
NAYS:  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this _____ 
day of ______________, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, Clerk of Council 
  

 







STATE OF GEORGIA     ) 
COUNTY OF CHATHAM ) 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE 
CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO SET 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS OF THE CITY OF POOLER, GEORGIA, 
do hereby ordain as follows: 

I. 
Chapter 2, Section 2-31 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Pooler is hereby 

amended by deleting the strikethrough text and adding the underlined text as follows: 

Sec. 2-31. Meetings. 

(a) The regular meetings of the aldermanic board Mayor and City Council shall be held
at the city hall on the first and third Monday of each month, at 6:00 p.m. 4:00 p.m.,
except when such day is a legal holiday observed by the city, in which case the
regular meeting shall be held on the following day at the same time and place. The
aldermanic board Mayor and City Council may change the day and time for a
regularly scheduled meeting by resolution majority vote during any regularly
scheduled or specially called meeting.

(b) Special meetings of the aldermanic board Mayor and City Council may be called
by either the mMayor or any four aldermen Councilmembers upon 48 hours' notice
to all the aldermanic board Mayor and all City Council members. This notice may
be waived by all members of the aldermanic board the Mayor or any
Councilmember. Notice to the public of special meetings shall comply with state
law regarding open meetings.

II. 
This ordinance or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed. 

III. 
This ordinance shall be deemed adopted upon its approval by the Mayor and 

Council members of the City of Pooler. The effective date of this ordinance after 
approval shall be May 1, 2023.

ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________, 2023. 

First Reading: __________________  Second Reading: __________________



Attest: 

_____________________________ 
Kiley Fusco, City Clerk 

_____________________________
Rebecca C. Benton, Mayor



AGENDA ITEM 

Date: March 7, 2023 

Subject: Pavement Setback Variance for 115 Towne Center Blvd. 
Background and Discussion: 

Dan Fischer, with EMC Engineering, presented the request to the P&Z Board for their review and recommendation. The request is to allow a parking encroachment in the required setbacks. Commissioner Simmons indicated to the petitioner, that the detention pond must be fenced for safety. The petitioner agreed. There were questions from the Board regarding access to the proposed hotel. In response, Mr. Fischer stated that the access will be from Davol Street. 

The adjacent property owners were notified on February 17, 2023. 

Advertisement in the Savannah Morning News on February 14, 2023. 

The property was posted on February 17, 2023. 

Planning and Zoning Recommendation: 

After review of the criteria, P&Z recommends approval for the pavement setback variance, contingent upon the detention pond being fenced, and the address being changed. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff concurs with P&Z and recommends review of the criteria for granting a variance prior to making a decision. 



MAYOR 

Rebecca C. Benton 

CITY COUNCIL 

Shannon Black 
Aaron C. Higgins 
Tom Hutcherson 
Stevie E. Wall 
John M. Wilcher 
Karen L. Williams 

CITY MANAGER 

Robert H. Byrd, Jr. 

CITY ATTORNEY 

Steve Scheer 

CITY OF POOLER 

DATE: February 14, 2023 

TO: Adjacent Property Owners 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

Mayor and Council 

RE: Pavement Setback Variance 

PIN#: 5-0017C-02-020 

OWNER: BPR Savannah Airport, LLC 

BPR Savannah Airport, LLC has petitioned the City of Pooler for pavement setback 

variance, to allow the encroachment of parking in the required setbacks. This 

property is located at 115 Towne Center Drive. 

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing has been scheduled before the Planning 

and Zoning Commission on Monday, February 27, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. The official 

Public Hearing before the Mayor & Council is scheduled for Tuesday, March 7, 

2023 at 6:00 p.m. The petitioner and any private individual shall be entitled to 

present evidence concerning the variance request before the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and/or Mayor and Council. If you plan to speak at the Official Public 

Hearing, please complete and submit by mail or fax a Campaign Disclosure Form 

five (5) days prior to the meeting. Further information may be obtained by calling 

(912) 748-7261 during regular business hours. (Project# 230171) 

100 US Highway 80 SW I Pooler, GA 31322 I (912) 748-7261 I www.pooler-ga.gov 



g 
~ • ! 
i .. 
C 

J 
i 
C 

i 
! 

xg 
i 
0 

, £ 

1, 

C 

' 11:. 
'Z 

I 

I :, 

I 

File# -7;~ 3-0~\ 1-· +--l -

Variance flpplication 

Applicant Roy Patel 

Mailing address 227 Westbrook Lane 

City Pooler State GA Zip 31322 

Telephone ( 912) 663-7000 Fax(_) 

Property Owner(s) BPR Savannah Ai rport, LLC / Roy Patel 

Mailing -address 227 Westbrook Lane 

City Pooler State GA Zip 31322 

Telephone .( 912 ) 663-7000 Fax·(_) 

Contact Person(s) Dan Fischer 

Mailing address EMC Engineering Services, Inc., 27 Chatham Center South, Suite A 

City Savannah State GA Zip 31405 

Telephone ( 912~ 232-6533 Fax (_) E-mail dan fischer@emc-eng.com 

,. All staff correspondence will be sent only to one designated contact person. 
,. Addresses and telephone numbers do not have to be repeated if provided above. 

Location address 115 Towne Center Drive 

Current Zoning PUD-C Present use Undeveloped 

Purpose of the Variance request. Describe those th ings, which you feel justify the action requested. List the specific 

sections of the ~of)ina Ordinance$ich have a bearing on your request: . . {)O....U ~.v,-f- s..e...-+1,a cJC 
~~ ~-t1) Gl ct__:.. 

Reguest for~ variances: 8' variance from the requ ired 20' .ettffef along Davel Street and 

Patel Drive; 6' and 8' variances along the western property lines from the requrrea 15' 6uffer. 
,;'~ocl r~t K 

The 12roeosed btttters are t:teical of erevious develoement in the neighboring commercial lots 

of the subdivision. The site plan has been approved by the AiiB. All lanascape requrrements 

have been met. The aooearance and character of the site will be comoarable to the adjoining 

developments. The developer owns the adjoining ROW's and undeveloped parcels . 

1 

RECEIVED 
FEB O 1 i]JLZ 

ZONING DEPARTMENT 



LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL 
INTERESTS 

With respect to the following requests made by: 

BPR Savannah Airport, LLC has petitioned the City of Pooler for pavement setback variance, to allow 
the encroachment of parking in the required setbacks. This property is located at 115 Towne Center 
Drive. 

I, in complying with O.C.G.A. 36-67 A-2, do hereby declare that: 

___ ( 1) I have a property interest in the above described real property. 

___ (2) I have a financial interest in a business entity which has a property 
interest in the above described real property. 

_ __ (3) I have a member ofmy family who has an interest described by 
(1) and (2) above. 

--- (4) None of the above. 

If you checked paragraph (3) or (4), stop here. 

If you marked either paragraph (l) or (2), sign the below statement. 

I understand that Georgia Law (O.C.G.A. 36-67 A-2) requires me to disqualify myself from voting on 
the rezoning action relating to this affidavit. I have not and will not take any other action on the 
application for rezoning regarding this affidavit. 



VflR/flNCE STIINDIIRDS 

After an application has been submitted to and reviewed by the Planning & 

Zoning Department, the Planning Commission, and the official public hearing 

has been held by the Mayor and Council, the Mayor and Council may grant a 

variance from the strict application of the provisions in this ordinance only if at 

least two of the following findings are made: 

• That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions beyond that of 

surrounding properties, including irregularity, narrowness, or shallowness 

of the lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical 

conditions, peculiar to the particular property. 

• That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, the property 

cannot be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning 

ordinance, without undue hardship to the property. 

• That granting the variance will not result in authorization of a use not 

otherwise permitted in the district in which the property is located or cause 

substantial detriment to the public good. 



~
 

f 
~r

nw
 

• 
t!

'!
i;

! 
! 

.• 
'I

 
111

 i1
: 

C
") m
 

i 
. I'

 
i' 

~ 
' 

Lr
 

! 

I I \ L
 ___

__
 _ --
"
 
-

-
l
)
l
~

 

....
 ,.::

r.·
,~

"' 

s 11
 

~~·
~i

=~1:
: 

,.. m
 

~1~ ~a 
;o

 

i 
' 

::
j 

~ 
.,, . n

 
• 

ii
 

~ 
1

1 
G

) 
~ 

m
 

z 
u

n
1p

11
 
□
 

• 
, 

. 
l 

Jq
;n

r 
<-

H
 !

 
• 

1 

.'l
i
J

~
{
l
~

~
~

 

' 
·>

 
~

g 
--<

 
m

 
ij 
i 

~ 

£H
P 

0 
~
~
 

~ 
.,, 

!§ 
~ 

~ 
i:

; 
i 

0 
~~

I 
::E

 
z 

H
 

I 
m

 
;o

 
"'

 
,..

 
Il

l 
a_

~ 
I 

:i:
: 

•"
 

'ii
 

• 
~~
~~
i~
~~
 

A
M

A
JO

R
S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
P

L
A

T
O

F
 

~
E

M
C

E
N

G
JN

EE
R

IN
G

 
[><

\ 
/ HO REV,SK

)N
O

E
S

C
R

~
T

IO
N

 

~ 
"-

~;
;i!

a 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

, 
IN

C
. 

~
 ,

__
_

_ 
-

-
-+

 
"
' 

~ 
~ 
~ 
~ 

<
 0

 
P

A
R

C
E

L 
B

A
 O

F
 T

H
E

 R
E

M
A

IN
IN

G
 P

O
R

T
IO

N
 O

F 
LO

T
 A

-1
A

 
~
 

,o
c~

~-
,••

•••
•.m

 ,~
.,.

, 
~
 

..
..

lo
.~

 f
 

"'
"" 

. 
. 

8T
H

 G
~ M

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
o

..
 

!~
~';'~

%~
J;

;os
 

f 
,. 

•11
11-

-
r
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
+

 

--<
 

1~~:1
"11

1•1
1 ~

 
P

O
O

LE
R

,C
H

A
T

H
A

M
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,

G
E

O
R

G
IA

 
-=

 ::'.:
~~:;:~

~-
: 

~ 
t-

+
-
-
-
-
-
l
 

§ 
-
~ 

... 
~ 
~ 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 f
or

: 
_ 

_
_

,.
..

, 
1-
+

-
-
-
-
-

f 
I ~

 ~ 
PA

T
E

L
 

--~
~Ac:

:~~
~~

=-
--

I 



t • • 
I 
X 
t 

l 
I 
r 

~ ·~ 
~VW:E • 1J1•5 

EMP\O~ESslJli$PA,¢ES 

2 H0)}~:/%e~~~llEO: 
IJSAEl'IUI.J'RSPACES 
eH.\NOICAPSPACES 

3. COJ,WERCIA.L PROPERTY REQUIRED: 
ISl'IIUP°ERl00.51' 
lfi REGULNI SPACES 

• COMMERCIAi. PRQEERN PA9YWO: 
•esPACESTOTM. 
•4REG\AARSPACES 
2 HANOIC-'P SPACES 

J CURRENT LAND USE: ='~ERCW. ;. ~\~ -.. ~ PROPOSEO\.NIOust: ELEMENTHOlELI ' \• 

FLEX OFFICE SPACE ;I"\ ' 
• , IQIIMl'\O<: 

1.. PROPUI.N ACREAGE 4.27 ACRES 
PROJeeT MEk 5~ ACRES 
otST\Jqa)AAEA: U,UCAU 
MPERVIOUSNfEA:l18 ACll(S(14'4) 
OllEEN'SPACE: UlllACJIESfl6'1,) 

8, GAS LIHI! COMING FROM OFF SITE lTTIUTY 
CONTRACTOR TO BE CETEJIM ... EO. 

7 SEEloRCHITEClURALPlMSFOAUTLlfY 
C~CTl!)HS. 

8 . ntl!I PAACEl LES WITliW ,_ %OHi! ll AS 
SHOWH ~ H.lr,IA FLOOD IN.IUANfCE ~TE 
w.1'1:SOS1C0019HEFFECTI\IEOATEJLrLY1 

m~ 
9, BICVO..E AACl<S BY LANOSi:.u>EFORMS 

90t.ASS. WWWll<HCJ5c:APEFORMS.COM 

10%-f'Efl TO ELEMEf,(T BVWEJiTN EXTERIOR 
SIGNAGE PACKAGE FOR Sl'ECFICI\TIONS 
FOl'I PAEFERRED PARKl<IG SIGNAGE, 

11 rcwo,aulD"'G BZ'-TTOPOFTOWER 
(S'EEAACHITECTI.JRALDRAWINGSFOR 
40DfflONAL NFORUATION) 

= 
•• DETECTABLE WARNING /.:REA Wrn-11'1 CURO 

C\JT MMPS TO BEWffi11N PATM OF 
Pl"OE!m'IIAHTAA\IEL Rl!l'l:RTOGOOT 
CONSlll\.lCTlON CET.-.l. A,,l ,oR LOCATIONS 
OF CE'Tf.CTABLE WARNING PADS WITlilN 
'lllEVAAIOUS TYPES OF~ JUMPS 

' ' 
~ 

' ••Vr-f!II.N~ -, -· 

\ -~ 
.. •r 1· • 
' 
r -~ \' .... 
~\ 1 ~-~-

" 

' 

~', ',,~y-
/ 

, , 
/ 

, , " 

DETENTION POND 

' ' 

- SEE ATTACHED REFERENCE PLAN 

"' ' ' 
"' ', 

-APPROVED (1/24/2020) AS PART OF HYATT HOUSE HOTEL PLANS 

'~< 

"' ' ' ~ 
·,,,, 

' ' 
\ 

:.T 
"'I 

I 

I 
I 

~ 
i 
~ 
~ 
i 

- l 
ffilH 1· w;;d I f 
?;w .~.~r, 1·1 
(!) S2 ~i;atr j ffi 6: ·i?[ . 
ow i!•i I ~1 ::;;en _u., 

1 UJ .. 

, «r1u 
~ r ~ I 
...J 
w 
5 
I 
1-z 
w 
~ 
w 

z ...J 
'.5 w 
0. -
(!) w ;, u 
" <( ~ a.. 
en en 

...J 
<( 

u 
Cl:'. 
w 
~ 
~ 
0 u 

fflO,itc:,,,-g, 

<( 

(!; 
0: 
0 
w 
C!) 

~ 
z L.: ...J 
=, J2 w 

8~~ ::; .,11-
<( Q. >
:c e o 
I- o.O: 
<( 
I u 
ci 
~ 
0 

~ 

I 
' 

-· 
I 

'"''"'°"' -

i \, ) i r·" t I . =~:' -~ 
! '\ / I , i ""7 

OF 18 

















































































PROJECT SUMMARY

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By:  · File #222204C · 27-Feb-23

Pooler Rec Complex Tennis And Pickleball
Pooler,GA

Ligh ng System
  Pole / Fixture Summary

Pole ID Pole Height Mtg Height Fixture Qty Luminaire Type Load Circuit
P1-P2 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW A

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW A
P3 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW A

50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW B
50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW A

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW B
P4 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW B

50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW A
50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW B

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW A
P5 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW B

50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW C
50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW B

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW C
P6 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW C

50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW B
50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW C

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW B
P7 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW C

50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW D
50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW C

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW D
P8 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW D

50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW C
50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW D

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW C
P9-P10 50' 50' 1 TLC-LED-1200 1.17 kW D

50' 1 TLC-LED-900 0.88 kW D
10 32 32.80 kW

  Circuit Summary
Circuit Description Load Fixture Qty

A Pickleball 8.2 kW 8

B Tennis 1-2 8.2 kW 8
C Tennis 3-4 8.2 kW 8

D Tennis 5-6 8.2 kW 8

  Fixture Type Summary
Type Source Wattage Lumens L90 L80 L70 Quantity

TLC-LED-1200 LED 5700K - 75 CRI 1170W 150,000 >120,000 >120,000 >120,000 16

TLC-LED-900 LED 5700K - 75 CRI 880W 104,000 >120,000 >120,000 >120,000 16

  Single Luminaire Amperage Draw Chart
Driver (.90 min power factor) Max Line Amperage Per Luminaire

Single Phase Voltage  208
(60)

 220
(60)

 240
(60)

 277
(60)

 347
(60)

 380
(60)

 480
 (60)

TLC-LED-1200 6.9 6.5 6.0 5.2 4.2 3.8 3.0

TLC-LED-900 5.2 4.9 4.5 3.9 3.1 2.9 2.3

Light Level Summary
  Calculation Grid Summary

IlluminationGrid Name Calculation Metric Ave Min Max Max/Min Ave/Min Circuits Fixture Qty

Pickleball Horizontal Illuminance 52.1 42 65 1.56 1.24 A 8
Tennis 1-2 Horizontal Illuminance 55.2 50 63 1.25 1.10 B 8

Tennis 3-4 Horizontal Illuminance 54.8 49 62 1.26 1.12 C 8
Tennis 5-6 Horizontal Illuminance 53.4 45 61 1.36 1.19 D 8



ILLUMINATION SUMMARY

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By:  · File #222204C · 27-Feb-23

65

65

62

54

52

54

62

65

65

60

61

58

52

48

52

58

61

60

51

53

52

50

47

50

52

53

51

44

46

45

45

45

45

45

46

44

42

43

43

42

42

42

43

43

42

43

44

44

43

43

43

44

44

43

48

50

48

48

47

48

48

50

48

55

57

54

53

51

53

55

57

55

61

63

60

55

52

55

60

63

61

61

63

62

57

55

57

63

63

61

P1

P2

70
'

63'

70
'

70'

70
'

70'

70
'

63'

P4

P3

SCALE IN FEET 1 : 20

0' 20' 40'

EQUIPMENT LIST FOR AREAS SHOWN
Pole Luminaires

QTY LOCATION SIZE GRADE
ELEVATION

MOUNTING
HEIGHT

LUMINAIRE
TYPE

QTY /
POLE

THIS
GRID

OTHER
GRIDS

2 P1-P2 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

1
1

1
1

0
0

2 P3-P4 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

2
2

1
1

1
1

4 TOTALS 12 8 4

Pole loca on(s) dimensions are rela ve
to 0,0 reference point(s)

Pooler Rec Complex Tennis And Pickleball
Pooler,GA

GRID SUMMARY
Name: Pickleball

Size: 104' x 84'
Spacing: 10.0' x 10.0'

Height: 3.0' above grade

ILLUMINATION SUMMARY
MAINTAINED HORIZONTAL FOOTCANDLES

En re Grid
Guaranteed Average: 50

Scan Average: 52.05
Maximum: 65
Minimum: 42
Avg / Min: 1.25

Guaranteed Max / Min: 2
Max / Min: 1.56

UG (adjacent pts): 1.17
CU: 0.47

No. of Points: 90
LUMINAIRE INFORMATION

Applied Circuits: A
No. of Luminaires: 8

Total Load: 8.2 kW

Guaranteed Performance: The ILLUMINATION described above
is guaranteed per your Musco Warranty document and
includes a 0.95 dirt deprecia on factor.

Field Measurements: Individual eld measurements may vary
from computer-calculated predic ons and should be taken
in accordance with IESNA RP-6-15.

Electrical System Requirements: Refer to Amperage
Draw Chart and/or the "Musco Control System Summary"
for electrical sizing.
Installa on Requirements: Results assume ± 3%
nominal voltage at line side of the driver and structures
located within 3 feet (1m) of design loca ons.



ILLUMINATION SUMMARY

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By:  · File #222204C · 27-Feb-23

5552505255

6356525663

5754505457
5754505457

6356525663

5552505255

P5

P6

62'

70'

62'

70'

63'

70'

62'

70'

P4

P3

SCALE IN FEET 1 : 20

0' 20' 40'

EQUIPMENT LIST FOR AREAS SHOWN
Pole Luminaires

QTY LOCATION SIZE GRADE
ELEVATION

MOUNTING
HEIGHT

LUMINAIRE
TYPE

QTY /
POLE

THIS
GRID

OTHER
GRIDS

4 P3-P6 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

2
2

1
1

1
1

4 TOTALS 16 8 8

Pole loca on(s) dimensions are rela ve
to 0,0 reference point(s)

Pooler Rec Complex Tennis And Pickleball
Pooler,GA

GRID SUMMARY
Name: Tennis 1-2

Size: 2 Court - 12' Spacing
Spacing: 20.0' x 20.0'

Height: 3.0' above grade

ILLUMINATION SUMMARY
MAINTAINED HORIZONTAL FOOTCANDLES

En re Grid
Guaranteed Average: 50

Scan Average: 55.16
Maximum: 63
Minimum: 50
Avg / Min: 1.10

Guaranteed Max / Min: 2
Max / Min: 1.25

UG (adjacent pts): 0.00
CU: 0.66

No. of Points: 30
LUMINAIRE INFORMATION

Applied Circuits: B
No. of Luminaires: 8

Total Load: 8.2 kW

Guaranteed Performance: The ILLUMINATION described above
is guaranteed per your Musco Warranty document and
includes a 0.95 dirt deprecia on factor.

Field Measurements: Individual eld measurements may vary
from computer-calculated predic ons and should be taken
in accordance with IESNA RP-6-15.

Electrical System Requirements: Refer to Amperage
Draw Chart and/or the "Musco Control System Summary"
for electrical sizing.
Installa on Requirements: Results assume ± 3%
nominal voltage at line side of the driver and structures
located within 3 feet (1m) of design loca ons.



ILLUMINATION SUMMARY

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By:  · File #222204C · 27-Feb-23

5553505255

6255525562

5654495456
5654495456

6255525562

5553505355

63'

70'

63'

70'

62'

70'

62'

70'

P5

P6 P8

P7

SCALE IN FEET 1 : 20

0' 20' 40'

EQUIPMENT LIST FOR AREAS SHOWN
Pole Luminaires

QTY LOCATION SIZE GRADE
ELEVATION

MOUNTING
HEIGHT

LUMINAIRE
TYPE

QTY /
POLE

THIS
GRID

OTHER
GRIDS

4 P5-P8 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

2
2

1
1

1
1

4 TOTALS 16 8 8

Pole loca on(s) dimensions are rela ve
to 0,0 reference point(s)

Pooler Rec Complex Tennis And Pickleball
Pooler,GA

GRID SUMMARY
Name: Tennis 3-4

Size: 2 Court - 12' Spacing
Spacing: 20.0' x 20.0'

Height: 3.0' above grade

ILLUMINATION SUMMARY
MAINTAINED HORIZONTAL FOOTCANDLES

En re Grid
Guaranteed Average: 50

Scan Average: 54.75
Maximum: 62
Minimum: 49
Avg / Min: 1.11

Guaranteed Max / Min: 2
Max / Min: 1.26

UG (adjacent pts): 0.00
CU: 0.65

No. of Points: 30
LUMINAIRE INFORMATION

Applied Circuits: C
No. of Luminaires: 8

Total Load: 8.2 kW

Guaranteed Performance: The ILLUMINATION described above
is guaranteed per your Musco Warranty document and
includes a 0.95 dirt deprecia on factor.

Field Measurements: Individual eld measurements may vary
from computer-calculated predic ons and should be taken
in accordance with IESNA RP-6-15.

Electrical System Requirements: Refer to Amperage
Draw Chart and/or the "Musco Control System Summary"
for electrical sizing.
Installa on Requirements: Results assume ± 3%
nominal voltage at line side of the driver and structures
located within 3 feet (1m) of design loca ons.



ILLUMINATION SUMMARY

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By:  · File #222204C · 27-Feb-23

P9

P10

5648455155

6153505561

5452515357
5452515357

6153495561

5748455155

70'

70'

70'

70'

62'

70'

63'

70'

P8

P7

SCALE IN FEET 1 : 20

0' 20' 40'

EQUIPMENT LIST FOR AREAS SHOWN
Pole Luminaires

QTY LOCATION SIZE GRADE
ELEVATION

MOUNTING
HEIGHT

LUMINAIRE
TYPE

QTY /
POLE

THIS
GRID

OTHER
GRIDS

2 P7-P8 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

2
2

1
1

1
1

2 P9-P10 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

1
1

1
1

0
0

4 TOTALS 12 8 4

Pole loca on(s) dimensions are rela ve
to 0,0 reference point(s)

Pooler Rec Complex Tennis And Pickleball
Pooler,GA

GRID SUMMARY
Name: Tennis 5-6

Size: 2 Court - 12' Spacing
Spacing: 20.0' x 20.0'

Height: 3.0' above grade

ILLUMINATION SUMMARY
MAINTAINED HORIZONTAL FOOTCANDLES

En re Grid
Guaranteed Average: 50

Scan Average: 53.42
Maximum: 61
Minimum: 45
Avg / Min: 1.18

Guaranteed Max / Min: 2
Max / Min: 1.36

UG (adjacent pts): 0.00
CU: 0.64

No. of Points: 30
LUMINAIRE INFORMATION

Applied Circuits: D
No. of Luminaires: 8

Total Load: 8.2 kW

Guaranteed Performance: The ILLUMINATION described above
is guaranteed per your Musco Warranty document and
includes a 0.95 dirt deprecia on factor.

Field Measurements: Individual eld measurements may vary
from computer-calculated predic ons and should be taken
in accordance with IESNA RP-6-15.

Electrical System Requirements: Refer to Amperage
Draw Chart and/or the "Musco Control System Summary"
for electrical sizing.
Installa on Requirements: Results assume ± 3%
nominal voltage at line side of the driver and structures
located within 3 feet (1m) of design loca ons.



EQUIPMENT LAYOUT

Not to be reproduced in whole or part without the written consent of Musco
Sports Lighting, LLC. ©1981, 2023 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC.ENGINEERED DESIGN By:  · File #222204C · 27-Feb-23

Pickleball

104' x 84'

P1

P2

Tennis 1-2

2 Court - 12' Spacing

P4

P3 P5

P6

Tennis 3-4

2 Court - 12' Spacing

P9

P10

Tennis 5-6

2 Court - 12' Spacing

P8

P7

SCALE IN FEET 1 : 50

0' 50' 100'

Pole loca on(s) dimensions are rela ve
to 0,0 reference point(s)

Pooler Rec Complex Tennis And Pickleball
Pooler,GA

EQUIPMENT LAYOUT
INCLUDES:
· Pickleball
· Tennis 1-2
· Tennis 3-4
· Tennis 5-6

Electrical System Requirements: Refer to Amperage
Draw Chart and/or the "Musco Control System Summary"
for electrical sizing.

Installa on Requirements: Results assume ± 3%
nominal voltage at line side of the driver and structures
located within 3 feet (1m) of design loca ons.

EQUIPMENT LIST FOR AREAS SHOWN
Pole Luminaires

QTY LOCATION SIZE GRADE
ELEVATION

MOUNTING
HEIGHT

LUMINAIRE
TYPE

QTY /
POLE

4 P1-P2
P9-P10

50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-1200
TLC-LED-900

1
1

6 P3-P8 50' - 50'
50'

TLC-LED-900
TLC-LED-1200

2
2

10 TOTALS 32

SINGLE LUMINAIRE AMPERAGE DRAW CHART
Driver

(.90 min power factor)
Line Amperage Per Luminaire

(max draw)

Single Phase Voltage 208
(60)

220
(60)

240
(60)

277
(60)

347
(60)

380
(60)

480
(60)

TLC-LED-1200 6.9 6.5 6.0 5.2 4.2 3.8 3.0
TLC-LED-900 5.2 4.9 4.5 3.9 3.1 2.9 2.3


	I. ROLL CALL/DECLARATION OF QUORUM
	II. CALL TO ORDER
	III. INVOCATION
	IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	V. ANNOUNCEMENTS
	VI. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2023
	6A_City Council Meeting_2023-02-21_Minutes_draft

	B. City Council Executive Session Minutes of February
	6B_City Council Meeting_2023-02-21_Executive Session Affidavit_executed


	VII. ORDINANCES, PROCLAMATIONS, RESOLUTIONS
	A. Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time (Secon
	7A_Ordinance O2023-02.A - Council Meeting Time_1


	VIII. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Pavement Setback Variance for 115 Towne Center Bou
	8A_Pavement Setback Variance for 115 Towne Center Boulevard

	B. Building Height Variance for a Proposed Hotel at 1
	8B_Building Height Variance for a Proposed Hotel at 115 Towne Center Drive

	C. Conditional Use Request for a Proposed Trailer Par
	8C_Conditional Use Request for a Proposed Trailer Parking Yard on Jimmy DeLoach Parkway

	D. Site Plan for Savannah Quarters Office on Holmes C
	8D_Site Plan for Savannah Quarters Office on Holmes Court

	E. Site Plan for Pittman Subaru on Kita Avenue (Clear
	8E_Site Plan for Pittman Subaru on Kita Avenue (Clear Lake Reserve)

	F. Proposal for Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis and 
	8G_Proposal for Pooler Recreation Complex Tennis and Pickleball Lighting System from Musco Lighting


	IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	X. ADJOURNMENT



